
san Joaquin

LAFCO Balancing Community and Commerce 

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-468-3198

AGENDA 

Thursday, July 13, 2023 9:00 A. M. 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 

44 NORTH SAN JOAQUIN STREET, 5TH FLOOR 
STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54953(b), Commission Members and members of the public may 
participate in this LAFCo meeting at the following location: 

6504 Copco Road 
Hornbrook, CA 96044 

* * 

Call to Order 
Announce Date and Time of Meeting for the Record 
Roll Call 
Pledge of Allegiance 

CONSENT ITEMS 

* * 

1. MEETING MINUTES OF JUNE 8, 2023
(Discussion and Possible Action by All Members)
Approve Summary Minutes of the regular meeting.

2. OUT-OF-AGENCY SERVICE REQUEST
(Discussion and Possible Action by Regular Members)
Request from the City of Stockton to provide out-agency sewer service outside the City
boundary under Government Code §56133 to 829 S. Dawes Avenue, 813 S. Olive Avenue,
and 3127 Fremont Street in Stockton.

3. PROPOSED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
A. Processing an Incorporation Proposal
B. Disclosure of Ex Parte Communication
C. Pledge of Office

Page 1 of3 

001



002



003



AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 

san Joaquin 

LAFCO Balancing Community and Commerce 

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-468-3198 

SUMMARY MINUTES 

June 8, 2023 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS CHAMBERS 
44 NORTH SAN JOAQUIN STREET, 5TH FLOOR 

STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 

Chairperson Patti called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 

ALTERNATE MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

ALTERNATE MEMBERS 
ABSENT: 

OTHERS PRESENT: 

Chairperson Patti, Commissioners Breitenbucher, Diallo, 
Johnson, Villapudua 

Commissioner Barton 

Commissioner Ding 

J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, Tom Terpstra, Legal
Counsel; Mitzi Stites, Commission Clerk/ Analyst; and
Claudia lboa, Administrative Assistant

Chairperson Patti stated that Commissioner Diallo will now serve as the Regular City Member and 
welcomed Commissioner Barton as the Alternative City Member. 

J.D. Hightower, Executive Officer, gave the Oath of Office to Commissioner Diallo and
Commissioner Barton.

CONSENT ITEMS 

Chairperson Patti introduced the Consent Items, Agenda Item No. 1, Summary of Minutes, Agenda 
Item No. 2 Out-Of-Agencies and Agenda Item No. 3, Proposed Policies and Procedures. 

Chairperson Patti stated that he was going to pull consent items No. 30 and asked that it be 
rescheduled to a future Commission Meeting. 

Commissioner Johnson declared that he would like to pull item 3B for the reason of extension and 
vote separately. 

Chairperson Patti Introduced Agenda Item No. 1, Summary of Minutes for April 13, 2023, Agenda 
Item No. 2, Out of Agency to 1842 Clover Lane, 2357 E. Alpine Avenue, 5507 E. Main Street and 
731 S. Cardinal Avenue in Stockton, and Agenda Item No. 3A, Financial and Accounting 
Procedures, Agenda Item No 3C, Application Procedure and Map Requirements. 

004



005



006



007



008



009



AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 

Balancing Community and Commerce 

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-468-3198

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

July 13, 2023 

TO: LAFCo Commissioners 

FROM: Jeffery Hightower, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: CITY OF STOCKTON OUT-OF-AGENCY SERVICE REQUESTS 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the Commission approve the requests from the City of Stockton to provide 
Out-of-Agency sewer service under the Government Code §56133 to properties located at 829 S. 
Dawes Ave, and 813 S. Olive Ave in Stockton. There is one commercial Out-of-Agency request 
from the City of Stockton to provide Out-of-Agency sewer service to property located at 3127 E. 
Fremont St in Stockton. 

Background 
Government Code Section §56133 states that the Commission may authorize a city or special 
district to provide new or extended services outside its jurisdictional boundaries but within its sphere 
of influence in anticipation of a later change of organization and that prior to providing new or 
extended service, the city or district must first receive approval from LAFCo. The Commission 
adopted a policy that conditions their approval for out-of-agency service requiring the recordation of 
an agreement with the landowner consenting to annexation of their property when annexation 
becomes feasible. 

The City of Stockton submitted request for approval to extend sanitary sewer services to single
family residences and commercial property outside the city limits but within the city's sphere of 
influence. A vicinity map is attached showing the location of the out-of-agency requests 
connections city to sewer lines are available to the properties and the property owner's have paid 
the appropriate connection fees to the city. The request for out-of-agency service are in compliance 
with the Government Code §56133 and Commission policies. Please note that the blue line shows 
the sewer line and the circle reflect the connection locations. Staff recommends approval of the 
attached Resolution 23-1524 approving out-of-agency services. 

Attachment: Resolution No. 23-1524 
Vicinity Maps 

010



011



012



013



014



AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

san Joaquin 

LAFCO Balancing Community and Commerce 

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-468-3198 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

July 13, 2023 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Recommendation 

LAFCo Commissioners 

Jeffery Hightower, Executive Officer 

PROPOSED ADOPTION OF POLICY: 
A. Procedures for Processing an Incorporation Proposal
B. Disclosure of Ex Parte Communication
C. Pledge of Office

.,. 

It is recommended that the Commission consider adopting the following procedures for processing an 
Incorporation Proposal, Disclosure of Ex Parte Communication and the Pledge of Office. 

Background 

Procedures for Processing an Incorporation Proposal 
Currently LAFCo's procedure for processing an Incorporation Proposal is not a part of LAFCo Policy. 
Staff recommends creating a new section in the Policy and Procedure guidelines to facilitate the 
current incorporation proposal as well as future proposals. Adopting the policy is intended to provide 
clear and concise direction for a complex and at times an overwhelming process. This will facilitate 
streamlining the necessary process to bringing a potential project to the Commission. The policy 
includes detailed information that coincide with the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg regulations. 

Disclosure of Ex Parte Communication 

To improve transparency staff recommends a LAFCo policy for disclosure of ex parte contacts. Ex 
parte contacts are substantive oral or individual written communications on matters, other than other 
than procedural matters, that occur outside of noticed public hearings. Pre-hearing disclosure of ex 
parte contacts protects the due process interests of the non-present parties to the matter. 

Mere casual or non-substantive communications do not violate the due process rights of non-present 
parties to applicable public hearing matter. This limitation is important to Commissioners because they 
are often expected to be available so that concerns or complaints may be expressed. Thus, the mere 
expression of support or opposition to a particular decision does not raise due process concerns when 
it is not accompanied by substantial factual information that influences a Commissioner's analyses or 
conclusions. 

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL Jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE www.sjlafco.org 

015



016



017



018



019



020



021



022



023



024



025



026



027



028



029



030



031



032



033



034



035



036



037



038



039



040



EXHIBIT C 

"REVISED PLEDGE" 

I, _____ do solemnly swear that I will support and defend the Constitution 
of the Unites States and the Constitution of the State of California against all 
enemies, foreign and domestic; that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the 
Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of California. 

As LAFCO Commissioner, pledge to uphold LAFCo's mission and mandate to 
promote sustainable growth and good governance in San Joaquin County. As an 
appointed LAFCo Commissioner, I will represent the interests of the public as a 
whole, and not solely the interests of my appointing authority. In doing so, I will help 
LAFCo be a forward thinking agency that stewards public resources for the good of 
the whole county. 

I will faithfully fulfill my duties as a LAFCo Commissioner, recognizing that LAFCo's 
work yields public benefits and that LAFCo has a unique role and responsibility in 
shaping the future of the county. 

Commissioner Signature Date 

Executive Officer Date 

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jdhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE https://www.sjlafco.org 



AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 

san Joaquin 

LAFCO Balancing Community and Commerce 

44 N. SAN JOAQUIN STREET SUITE 374 STOCKTON, CA 95202 209-468-3198

July 13, 2023 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Recommendation 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT 

LAFCo Commissioners 

Jeffery Hightower, Executive Officer 

Mountain House Incorporation - Study Session on Draft Comprehensive Fiscal 
Analysis for the Proposed Incorporation of the City of Mountain House (Public 
Review Draft) 

It is recommended that the Commission receive information regarding the Draft Comprehensive Fiscal 
Analysis (DCFA) completed for the Mountain House Community Service District's (MHCSD) incorporation 
application. 

Background 

On January 13, 2021, the MHCSD Board of Directors (MHCSD Board) adopted a resolution requesting 
that LAFCo initiate proceedings for the incorporation of a new City of Mountain House (Proposed City), 
and filed its application to LAFCo in February 2021. Since the original filing in February 2021, the MHCSD 
Board amended the original application three times. First, on May 11, 2022, the MHCSD Board approved 
an Amended Resolution of Application for Incorporation to LAFCO, which clarified that MHCSD would 
divest all of its statutorily authorized powers except the power to enforce Covenants, Conditions, & 
Restrictions ("CC&Rs"), with the Proposed City assuming the divested powers, and would be established 
as a subsidiary district of the Proposed City. Later, in November 2022 and again in April 2023, MHCSD 
initiated annexation proposals for several additional parcels located in the Mountain House General Plan 
area and additional undeveloped land near the eastern end of the community, which areas were then 
included in the MHCSD incorporation application. 

A key component of the proceedings for incorporation of the Proposed City is the CFA (CFA), required 
pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertaberg Local Agency Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH), specifically, 
Government Code section 56800. Pursuant to Section 56800, the LAFCo Executive Officer is required to 
prepare, or cause to be prepared by contract, the CFA. 

For purposes of the MHCSD incorporation Application, LAFCo contracted with RSG, a firm with extensive 
experience in preparation of municipal financial documents, including Draft CF A's for other incorporations. 
The analysis done by RGS, will be the cornerstone of the staff report for the proposed incorporation of the 
new City of Mountain House. The Draft CFA reflects data from FY 2021/2022. Thus, it is important for the 
Commission to receive information and understand the findings of the CFA. 

PHONE 209-468-3198 E-MAIL jhightower@sjgov.org WEB SITE www.sjlafco.org 

042



043



044



045



046



047



048



049



050



051



052



053



054



055



056



057



058



059



060



061



062



063



064



065



066



067



068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



078



079



080



081



082



083



084



085



086



087



088



089



090



091



092



093



Sales Taxes 

The Bradley-Burns Uniform Sales and Use Tax Act provides for State administration of the local sales 
tax and is administered by the CDTFA. The State collects taxes from sellers and purchasers and later 
remits sales tax allocations to local governments. Generally, businesses collect sales taxes based on 
the location of the transaction. As of July 1, 2023, the statewide sales and use tax rate is 7.25 percent. 

A city typically receives 1 percent of taxable sales made within its boundaries. The estimated sales 
tax revenues are based on data supplied by the County of San Joaquin and conversations with the 
CDTFA. The MHCSD currently has a relatively small commercial footprint. Businesses in the 
Proposed Boundary generated approximately $825,000 in taxable sales during the twelve-month 
period ending June 30, 2022. 

Locally generated sales tax revenues are adjusted based on the pro rata share of locally generated 
taxes within the County (for countywide indirect apportionments) and within the State (for other 
statewide indirect apportionments). Due to confidentiality limitations on the data available from the 
CDTFA, the small geographic area, and the limited commercial activity in the Proposed Boundary, 
they were unable to supply the specific amount of sales tax distributed to San Joaquin County that 
was paid by retailers located in the Proposed Boundary. Instead CDTFA provided actual taxable sales 
for the zip code 95391, which RSG determined was the next best proxy.20 RSG then analyzed that
data along with data provided by the County Administrator's Office and its consultant HDL. 

Future commercial construction is projected to produce approximately 250,500 square feet of retail 
space, while industrial construction is projected to complete 778,500 square feet of warehouse and 
other industrial use space. Only the commercial zoned development will produce sales taxes, 
exclusive of any office construction. This CFA projects a Safeway grocery store, gas station, and 
small retail marketplace will be open and producing sales taxes in the transition year. As of the writing 
of this CFA, the Safeway is open. Commercial developments planned further than the transition year 
are based on the development forecast. This includes projects planned under "freeway commercial" 
and "general commercial" zoning, per MHCSD. Depending on the type of development, RSG 
assumed a rate between $32 and $325 of sales per square foot when calculating the tax revenues. 

The City will start receiving sales taxes in the first quarter following the adoption of a Bradley Burns 
ordinance, which will likely occur within the first few months of the transition year. As such, the City 
would start collecting sales tax in the second quarter of FY 2024-25, only collecting three-quarters of 
the sales tax revenue generated in FY 2024-25. The County will collect the sales taxes from the first 
quarter of FY 2024-25. In addition, the CDTFA remits payments to cities approximately three months 
following the end of a quarter. Therefore, in each fiscal year, the City will collect revenues generated 
in the fourth quarter of the prior fiscal year, and the first three quarters of the current fiscal year. 
Combined with the time it may take the City Council to adopt a Bradley Burns ordinance, this results 
in the City only collecting one-half of the FY 2024-25 sales tax revenue in the transition year. The City 
will receive as fourth quarter FY 2024-25 revenues in FY 2025-26. 

LAFCO Terms and Conditions could specify that sales tax revenues received by the County from the 
MHCSD following formation of the City shall be applied towards reimbursement of County transition 
year services; any additional sales tax received by the County during the transition year, in excess of 
reimbursements, that otherwise would have accrued to the City should be remitted by the County to 
the City. 

Figure 18 presents the adjusted taxable sales projections for the City. 

2
° Correspondence with CDTFA dated March 27, 2023. 

@RSG
44 

094



@) 
::::0 
Ul 
C) 

� 
01 

SALES TAXES 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY 

Item Detail amLAuumptlons 

Prior Year Taxable Sales Plus 2.6% 

New Taxable Sales Added by Year2 
2.6" tnnaliona,y lncn,ase 

Safeway Grocery Store 
RelaH Stores (3x) 
Safeway Convenience/Fuel Slallon 
Safeway Gasoline Sales 
Freeway & General Commercial 

Tolal Taxable Sales 

Tola! Sales Taxes'·' 

SF 

55,000 

25,500 

3,000 

3,000 

Sales TranslUon 
Per SF' 7 /1/24 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 

12 Month Perlod S.glnnlng 

7/1/28 7/1/29 7/1/30 

846,800 I 19,284,600 19,791,800 25,863,000 26,543.200 27,241,300 66,159,300 

150 

I 
8.689.700 

325 8,729,200 

32 101,100 

141 
325 

423,628 
5,408,400 37,222,600 

7/1/31 7/1 /32 ]/_1/33 

67,899,300 111,818,500 114,759,300 

41,053..,_700 

18,790,428 ! 19.284,eoo 2s.200.200 25,863,ooo 26,543,200 64,463,900 se.1s9,3oo 1os,953.ooo 111.s1s.soo 114_,IS9,300 

s ss.5oo Is 114.200 s 21s.eoo $ 233.eoo $ 239.100 s 499.soo s 5s1.eoo s 893.200 s 1.010.000 s 1,03e.soo 

1 Gmce,y and Retail sales per squam foot per marl<et expectations fmm RSG experience. Convenience and Gasolne sales per National Association of Convenience Stores (NACS). 
2 Pmjection is inflated forward by CPI of 2. 6". based on December 2013 to December 2022 CPI 
'Analysis incorporates a negative 10" marl<et adjustment due to expected marl<et conditions (Costar. RSG) 

' This forecast is performed on a cash basis. Total Sales Taxes am adjusted by half in the t,ansition year because one quarter of ,evenues tAOuld be lost while tho new City elects to receive the tax, and an 
additional quarter ls collected the follovwng f,scal year as payments to cities are typically teceived 2-3 months behind the end of each quarter. In subsequent yeats, one quarterof the ,evenue is associated 
'Mth the prior fiscal years sales gene,ation, and three quartets !Mlh the current fiscal year. 

.,, 

10· 

-.a. 
00 

I 

� 
CD" 
Cl) 

ai' 
� 
Cl) 

095



096



097



098



099



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

Community Development includes planning, building, construction management, and approval of 
project development and submittals. The Community Development Department oversees code 
enforcement for MHCSD, which involves the review and enforcement of MHCSD's CC&R's. Upon 
incorporation, the City will retain the staff from the existing Department including the Community 
Development Director, Associate Planner, Administrative Secretary, Engineer V, and a Senior Public 
Works Inspector. Additionally, MHCSD expects to fill vacancies for an Engineer 11, and a Principal 
Planner prior to or immediately upon incorporation. The CFA assumes that this Department will have 
nine employees. 

The County of San Joaquin will transfer a variety of services to the City including planning, building 
inspection, engineering, code enforcement services, compliance with environmental laws, field and 
construction inspections, assigning property addresses, permit issuance, construction drawing 
review, and review and approval of grading permits, parcel maps, and boundary line adjustments. 
These services are not currently under the jurisdiction of the MHCSD, but MHCSD partners closely 
with the County on all development projects. Using detailed data on fee revenues and their 
corresponding cost recovery ratios, RSG was able to back into the costs to provide the transferred 
County services. A per-permitted unit ratio was then used to project the costs forward, providing a 
more realistic forecast tied to construction rather than population growth. 

After incorporation, the CFA includes the addition of two new employees in Community Development 
to handle former County services: another Assistant Planner and a Code Enforcement Officer. Code 
enforcement services transferring from the County are not to be confused with the code enforcement 
services that will remain in the Subsidiary District. The City would be responsible for the enforcement 
of the General Plan and Zoning Code, while the Subsidiary District will oversee enforcement of the 
CC&Rs. 

The City would initially adopt the County's General Plan, subject to and relying on the underlying EIR, 
but would need to adopt its own General Plan, Housing Element, and certify associated environmental 
documentation within 30 months of incorporation.37 Following the adoption of the General Plan, the 
City will need to adopt a zoning code. Based on estimates provided by local planning consultants and 
LAFCO staff, the cost of preparing or updating the General Plan, the corresponding EIR, and the 
Zoning Code is approximately $1.5 million. The City can file for a two-year extension on top of the 
originally allowed 30 months allocated for preparation, which is a common practice.38 The CFA
assumes that the costs associated with the General Plan and Zoning Code are spread out over the 
first three years after the transition year. These costs are not projected per capita nor inflated.39

All remaining costs, exclusive of costs transferred from the County, are projected from base year 
actuals sourced by MHCSD's FY 2021-22 Audited Financials. Overall, the CFA projects Community 
Development Department expenditures from the General Fund to be $4.5 million in the transition 
year. This fluctuates for the remainder of the forecast due to the cost of transferred services from the 
County being projected on a per-permit basis as opposed to per-capita. The costs for the Department 
reach as high as $6.9 million in FY 2026-27 while sliding back down to $5.2 million in FY 2033-34. A 
relatively small portion of the Department's expenditures are anticipated to be funded by Special 
Taxes, resulting in the General Fund largely responsible for costs of these services. 

Figure 31 shows the Department forecast. 

37 Government Code Section 65360 
38 Government Code Section 65631 
39 Due to the unpredictable nature of cost recovery, the CFA excludes a General Plan fee that many cities 
charge to help defray the cost of a General Plan Update. 

70 

120



@) 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 'l1 

PROPOSED BOUNDARY 12 Month Period Beginning (Q' 
j Trensltfon C: 

lie 
I 7/1/24 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 7/1/28 7/1/29 7/1/30 7/1/31 7/1/32 7/1/33 � 

:::ci (.) 

(J) Department Expenditures 
� 

c,, Salaries & Benef�s Salary BSR1 
" 

I 

Community Development Director 229.963 51% 2.6'/4 $ 366,600 $ 376,300 $ 386,200 s 396.300 s 406,700 $ 417.400 s 428.400 $ 439,700 s 451,300 $ 463,100 (") 

Administrative Secretary 76.068 62% 2.6% $ 130,200 133.600 137,100 140,700 144,400 148,200 152,100 156,100 160,200 164,500 

3 EngineerV 162,107 52'/4 2.6'/4 $ 260,100 266,900 273,900 281,100 288,500 296.100 303,900 311,900 320,100 328,500 

3 Senior Pubic Works Inspector 101.985 95% 2.6'/4 $ 209,500 215,000 220,700 226,500 232.400 238,500 244,800 251,200 257,900 264,600 
C: 

Associate Planner 92.934 68% 2.6'/4 $ 164,900 169,200 173.600 178.200 182.900 187,700 192.600 197.700 202,900 208,300 ::s 
Future Salaries � + Principal Planner 132.742 70°/4 2.6% $ 237,300 243,600 250.000 256.500 263,300 270,200 277,300 284,600 292,100 299,800 

+ Engineer II 126,415 57'/4 2.6% $ 209,600 215.100 220.800 226.600 232,600 238,700 245.000 251,400 258,000 264,800 0 
+ Associate Ptanner2 92,934 68% 2.6'/4 $ 169,200 173,600 178,200 182.900 187,700 192,600 197.700 202.900 208.300 
+ Code Enforcement Officer' 91,596 77% 2.6% $ 175.200 179.800 184,500 189,400 194,400 199,500 204.700 210.100 215,600 

Operations & Maintenance 

I

$ 571,700 

i 
630.200 700,300 768.500 826,600 887.400 946,900 1,008.400 1.067.000 1,125,000 3 

Trial Balance 21·22 485,659 
Growth Rate 2.6% .... 

General Plan, EIR. and Zoning Update' Is ! 500.000 500,000 500,000 

Consultant Estimate 500,000 

Growth Rate 2.6% 

Addltional County Planning & Code Enforcement' Is 397,2181 516,895 619.251 560,544 416,711 417.006 377.432 372,116 317,665 288,728 
County COD Estinate 243,291 
Cosl Per Permit 787 

Additional County Building Inspection Costs
°' Is 2.018.411 I 2.626.613 3,146,734 2.848.414 2,117,523 2,119.024 1,917.927 1,890,914 1,614.220 1,467,176 

County COD Estimale 1,236,288 
Cost Per Permit 4,001 

Transfers Out to Special Tax Fund (51,852) (59.285) (68,094) (69,625) (78,014) (84,787) (91,944) (98,396) (104.605) (110.404) 

TOTAL $4,513,737 $6,178,524 $6,913.891 $6,676,433 $5,405.921 $5,517,544 $5,386,515 $5,468,034 $ 5.249,780 $ 5.188.000 

Population for Per capita Eslimate 27,032 
Projected Populalion (Proposal) 27,032 30,209 32.451 35,136 37,568 39.375 41,183 42,820 44.434 45,812 47,064 

' BSR is tho beneffls .. alary ratio, reflecting tho add�ional cost of personnel benoffls for that poslion as a poroontago of salary. 
2 Assumes the second Associate Planner end Code Enforcement Off,cer from the County would arrive after the transition year. 
3 

General Plan, Environmental Impact Reporlfflg (EIR), and Zoning update 1Jstimates sourced from RSG emal inquiry/survey of relevant planning consultants in and around San Joaquin County. 

' County planning and building costs transferred to tho City B19 projected on a per./ssued,permit basiS. 

121



PUBLIC WORKS 

MHCSD operates its own Public Works Department that would transfer to the City upon incorporation. 
Public Works oversees the design and construction of publicly financed projects, asset management, 
and maintenance and operations of existing community facilities. There are three divisions within the 
current Department structure that are expected to remain in the City: Engineering, Regulatory 
Compliance, and Operations and Maintenance. Engineering will continue to provide general 
engineering services. The Regulatory and Compliance Division, through plan review and field 
inspection, will continue providing guidance in compliance with state and local construction laws. 
Operations and Maintenance will also continue to provide maintenance of the City's fleet, water, 
sewer, and storm drainage, park facilities, streets and roads, and signage. The CFA utilizes the 
MHCSD FY 2021-22 Audited Financials to determine base year cost estimates. 

Most of the Public Works Department's funding will come from three of the four special taxes, which 
are included in the CFA. In the unlikely event the City's special taxes will not be able to cover the 
costs of services, other General Fund revenues will need to be utilized to subsidize the balance. 
Additionally, costs associated with the MHCSD's water and wastewater funds are not projected as 
they are outside of the scope of this CFA. 

The City will continue to maintain a special Road Fund that is primarily funded by state gas tax 
revenues. In addition, the MHCSD has three Lighting and Landscape Maintenance Districts ("LLMD"). 
This CFA assumes these districts will transfer to the City. The LLMDs are funded primarily by property 
taxes. Public Works Department expenditures related to both the Road Fund and LLMD funds have 
been allocated to said funds in Appendices 2 and 3. 

The CFA assumes Public Works will maintain its pre-incorporation levels, with the addition of three 
staff: a Maintenance Worker 11, Engineer V, and a Utility Manager prior to or upon incorporation.40 

The Public Works Director, Operations & Maintenance Superintendent, Maintenance Worker II, 
Senior Maintenance Worker, Engineer V, Engineer 11, Landscape Supervisor, and two Administrative 
Assistants are all projected to remain in the Department. This CFA includes the costs of eleven Public 
Works positions. 

Following incorporation, the City will be responsible for meeting federal clean water requirements, 
including maintaining a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") permit. The 
NPDES program addresses urban runoff issues through public education, storm drain clearance, 
monitoring of intake and release infrastructure, and public improvements to increase water quality. 

The City would likely join the County, as well as the cities of Tracy, Lodi, Lathrop, and Patterson41 to 
implement the Multi-Agency Post Construction Stormwater Standards. These standards were 
developed to provide guidance for developers and builders to implement requirements for stormwater 
standards required by state law. The City would be responsible for implementing and monitoring these 
standards. 

Valley Waste Disposal provides recycling and waste management services to the MHCSD. The CFA 
assumes the continuation of this contract through the term of the analysis. 

Additional expenditures include utility costs not associated with any District proprietary funds and plan 
check costs from the County. The utility costs cover the utility costs relating to electricity, street 
lighting, and traffic signals.42 The CFA calculated plan check service costs from data provided by the 
County Community Development Department. 

40 Per discussions with MHCSD staff. 
41 City of Patterson is in Stanislaus County. 
42 MHCSD FY 2021-22 Audited Financials 

@RsG 
72 

122



The municipal operations of the Public Works Department not covered by the Road or LLMD funds, 
are projected to have all costs funded by the Special Tax funds in this CFA. In the transition year or 
FY 2024-25, costs transferred include $1 million to the fund for Special Tax Ordinance 96-4 for Public 
Works, $48,000 to the fund for Special Tax Ordinance 96-3 for Parks, and $3.7 million to the fund for 
Special Tax Ordinance 96-1 for Roads, Operations, and Administration. Therefore, no costs are 
projected in the General Fund in this CFA. A breakdown of the applicable Public Works expenditures 
in the Special Tax funds are shown in Appendix 9. 

Figure 32 shows the detailed projection of the expenditures for Public Works. 

@ SG 

73 

123



@) 
.::0 
(./) 

C) 

---.I � 

PUIIUCWORKS 

PROPOSED BOUNDARY 12 Month Period Beglnr'llng 
i Transition 1 

Item 7/1/24 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 7/1/28 7/1/29 

Department Expenditures 
Salafie.s & Benefits Salary BSR' A 

Public Worl<s Director 206,905 76% 2.6'/o $ 382,800 $ 392,900 $ 403,200 $ 413,800 $ 424,700 S 435.900 
Operations and Maintenance Superintendent 136,676 64% 2.6% $ 236,100 242,300 248,600 255,200 261,900 268,800 
Maintenance Worker II 57,879 95% 2.6% $ 118,800 122,000 125,200 128,500 131,900 135,300 
Senior Maintenance Worker 85.106 80% 2.6% $ 161,800 166,000 170,400 174.900 179,500 184.200 
EngineerV 162,107 52% 2.6% S 260,100 266,900 273,900 281,100 288,500 296,100 
Engineer 11 126,415 57% 2.6% S 209,600 215,100 220,800 226,600 232,600 238,700 
Landscape Supervfsor 112,984 73% 2.6% S 205,800 211,200 216,800 222.500 228,300 234,300 
Administrative Assistant (2x) 87.242 71% 2.6% S 313,400 321,600 330,100 338.800 347,700 356.800 

Future Salaries2 

+ Maintenance Worker II 57,879 95% 2.6% $ 118,800 122.000 125,200 128,500 131,900 135,300 
+ EnglneerV 162,107 52'/, 2.6% $ 260,100 266,900 273.900 281,100 288,500 296,100 
+ utUlty Manager 139,371 69% 2.6% $ 247,900 254.400 261.100 267,900 275,000 282.200 

Engineering Division $ 504,900 556,700 618,600 678,800 730,200 783.800 
Trial Balance 21-22 428.970 
Growlh Rate 2.6% 

Regulatory Compliance OMsk>n I$ 7.500 I 8,300 9,200 10,100 10,800 11,600 
Trial Balance 21-22 6,373 
Growlh Rate 2.6% 

Operations & Maintenance Division I s 1.246.2001 1.373,900 1,526,800 1.675,300 1,802,100 1,934,500 
Trial Balance 21·22 1,058,748 
Growlh Rate 2.6o/. 

Is Ulifrties (Electricity, Traffoe Signal, & Street Lighting) 290.200 I 320,000 355,600 390,200 419,700 450.500 
Trial Balance 21-22 246,572 
Growth Rate 2.6% 

AddiHonel County Plan Check Costs3 

I$ 246,998 ! 321,416 385,063 348,558 259,119 259,303 
County COD Estimate 151,284 
Growlh Rate 2.6% 

Transfers Out to Special Tax Fund Is (4.810.998) (5,161,616) (5.544.463) (5,821.858) (6,012,419) (6,303,403) 
I 

TOTAL Is s s s s s 

Population for Per Cspita Estimate 27.032 
Projected Population (Proposal) 27,032 30,209 32,451 35,136 37,568 39,375 41,183 

1 
BSR is the bene(,ts--salery ratio, reflecUng the additional cost of personnel benefits for that position as a pe,centage of safary. 

� Future Safaries projflctions are based on lhe sssulfl)tion of new hires l!IS reported to RSG from Mountain House, if'lclusive of County staff to be transferred 
3 County plan check costs transferred to the City are projected on a per-issued-permit basis. 

.,, 

c5· 

7/1/30 7/1/31 7/1/32 7/1/33 
C: 

;j; 
w 
N 

I 

s 447,400 $ 459,100 s 471,200 $ 483,600 "ti 
275,800 283,100 290,500 298,200 C: 

138,900 142,500 146,300 150,100 -.. 
189,000 194,000 199,100 204,300 0 

303.900 311,900 320,100 328.500 

� 245,000 251,400 258,000 264,800 
240,500 246,800 253,300 260,000 
366.200 375,800 385.700 395,800 

c,, 

138,900 142,500 146,300 150,100 
303,900 311,900 320,100 328,500 
289.600 297,300 305,100 313,100 

836,400 890,700 942.500 993,700 

12.400 13,200 14,000 14,800 

2,064,200 2,198,400 2,326.200 2.452,600 

480,700 512,000 541,700 571,200 

234,695 231,389 197,531 179,537 

(6,567,495) (6,861,989) (7,117,631) (7 .388,837) 

$ s $ s 

42,820 44,434 45,812 47,064 

124



ANIMAL CONTROL 

MHCSD currently receives Animal Control services through the San Joaquin County Sheriffs 
Department, who provides the service through a contract with the City of Stockton. The CFA assumes 
the services will continue after incorporation. 

Projected costs for Animal Control are based on information provided by the San Joaquin County 
Sheriff and the City of Stockton. Total costs for Animal Control are projected to be $88,100 in the 
transition year or FY 2024-25. Forecasts increase to $173,400 in the final year of the forecast or FY 
2033-34. Consistent with the Special Tax ordinances, all projected costs for Animal Control services 
are projected to be funded by Special Tax Ordinance 96-2 for Public Safety and therefore are not a 
net impact on the new City General Fund. 

Figure 33 shows the forecast: 

75 

125



126



LAW ENFORCEMENT 

The City of Mountain House will provide law enforcement through crime prevention, investigations, 
and traffic management, among other services. There is currently no standalone department or 
division for law enforcement in the MHCSD. MHCSD contracts with San Joaquin County Sheriffs 
Department, the California Highway Patrol ("CHP") and a private security firm, Rank Investigations. 
The contract with the Sheriff's Department, however, is only for supplemental law enforcement above 
the base level provided to unincorporated areas. As an unincorporated area, MHCSD receives a 
certain amount of police protection as part of the duties of the County to all unincorporated areas. 
This service is not currently paid for by MHCSD but will be the responsibility of the City upon 
incorporation. 

The CFA calculated the contracted Law Enforcement expenditures from MHCSD's FY 2021-22 
audited financials. Base level services were calculated using calls for service data provided by the 
Sheriff and applying MHCSD's percentage share of those calls to the total net cost of Sheriff services 
for the County. MHCSD, as of FY 2021-22, accounts for 4.85 percent of the total calls for service the 
Sheriff's Department receives. RSG next determined the total net costs for the County by excluding 
certain costs that the future City would not be responsible for as well as those that are accounted for 
in another department. These included services classified under the Probations, Detentions, and 
Corrections category, Special Services Division, Animal Control, and the City of Lathrop's contract. 
RSG then netted out the existing Mountain House contract to arrive at the base level cost. The Sheriff, 
however, did not provide direct data showing expenditures made as part of their base level services43

. 

RSG notes that if the Sheriff or County were to provide a precise calculation, the resulting number 
may materially alter the results of this CFA. 

The three service providers for law enforcement in MHCSD complement one another. The Sheriff 
covers the general policing of the area and acts as the MHCSD's official police department. CHP 
provides public safety services for traffic and speed management. Rank Investigations provides 
supplemental private security patrol services. Based on discussions with MHCSD staff, RSG 
assumed that this three-pronged approach to public safety will continue upon incorporation. It is worth 
noting that future negotiations with each public safety contractor may result in changes that alter the 
assumptions in this CFA. 

Future Law Enforcement staffing assumptions for the City of Mountain House are based upon a per 
capita calculation plus a growth rate of 5.4 percent. RSG determined the growth rate by averaging 
the annual percent change in contract costs for MHCSD and the City of Lathrop from FY 2015-16 to 
2021-22. However, the CFA does not forecast specific staffing increases or totals. As of March 2023, 
the Sheriff's Department, as part of the supplemental contract, provides seven patrol officers and one 
patrol sergeant to the MHCSD. Sheriff staffing for base level policing services was not provided. Rank 
Investigations staffs MHCSD with at least one officer for at least 16 hours per day, per the contract. 
In 2021, CHP provided traffic services to the MHCSD that included five arrests, 45 collision 
responses, and 123 citations. CHP did not provide staffing resource figures. 

This CFA forecasts Law Enforcement expenditures from the General Fund of $3.3 million in FY 2024-
25. This includes $2.3 million for the County Sheriff's supplemental policing, $562,400 for Rank
Investigations, $16,800 for CHP, and $2.8 million for the Sheriffs base level policing. Additionally,
this CFA projects that $2.4 million in costs will be covered by the Special Tax for Public Safety or
Ordinance 96-2. The net General Fund costs climb to $9.8 million in FY 2033-34, as shown in Figure
34. 

43 The Sheriff, in addition to the calls-for-service percentage, did provide their estimate of total base level 
costs to Mountain House inclusive of all services in the Sheriffs budget. For the purposes of this CFA, 
however, RSG netted out costs (listed above) the City would not be responsible for. 

77 

127



@) 
JJ 
(J) 

G) 

-.J 
co 

LAW ENFORCEMENT 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY 12 Month Period Beginning 

I Transition 
Item Detail and Assum !Ions 7/1/24 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 7/1/28 7/1/29 7/1/30 711/31 7/1/32 711/33 

Department Expendttures 
Public Safety Contracts 

County Shertff CSD Contract' $ 2,318,600 S 2,625,700 $2,997,100 $3,378,100 S 3,732,500 $ 4,115,500 $ 4,511,000 S 4,934,700 S 5,363,400 S 5,808,600 
Trial Balance 21-22 1,866,944 
Growth Rate 5.4% 

Patrol Services� Rank lnvestigations2 
s 562,400 636,800 726,900 819,300 905,300 998,200 1,094,100 1,196,900 1,300,900 1,408,900 

Trial Balance 21-22 452,819 
Growth Rate 5.4% 

CalWomia Highway Patrol• Traffic Services s 16,800 19,000 21,700 24,500 27,000 29,800 32,700 35,700 38,900 42,100 
Trial Balance 21-22 13,524 
Growth Rate 5.4% 

Miscellaneous Expenses $ 25,100 28,400 32,400 36,500 40,300 44,500 48,700 53,300 57,900 62,800 
Trial Balance 21-22 20,170 
Growth Rate 5.4% 

County Sheriff Base Level Services 
1 Is 2.1ee.3oo I 3,157,600 3,604,200 4,062,400 4,488,600 4,949,200 5,424,800 5,934,400 6,450,000 6,985,400 

County Shertff Estimate 2,245,164 
Growth Rate 5.4% 

Transfers Out to Special Tax Fund $ (2,402,832) (2,648,580) (2,933,704) (3,214,878) (3,456,470) (3,685,350) (3,915,035) (4,136,199) (4,341,254) (4,539,620) 

TOTAL S 3,308,368 S 3,818,920 $4,448,596 $5,105,922 $5,737,230 $ 6,451,850 $ 7,196,265 $ 8,018,801 $ 8,869,846 S 9,768,180 

Population for Per Captta Estimate 27,032 
Projected Population (Proposal) 27,032 30,209 32,451 35,136 37,568 39,375 41,183 42,820 44,434 45,812 47,064 

' County Sheriff Contracted Services exclude Animal Control In this analysis. Costs a,e projected on a per cepffa basis as wel as by the Sheriff cost inflation rate (based on histoncal contract cost incraases} 
2 Rank Investigations is a private security contractor utilized by the District for supplemental public safety services 

,, 
10· 
t: 

iti 
w 
,lio,. 
I 

� 
� 
o' 
� 
(1) 

3 
(1) 

128



129



@) 
:::0 
(J) 

C) 

ex, 
0 

RECREATION 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY 12 Month Period Beginning 

I Transition 1 

tion1 7/1124 7/1/25 7/1126 7/1/27 7/1128 7/1/29 

Department ExpendH.ures 
Salaries & Benefits Salary BSR1 6 

Administrative Servk:es Director2 103,452 54% 2.6% $ 167,900 $ 172,400 $ 176,900 $ 181,500 $ 186,300 $ 191,200 $ 

Recreabon Manager 123.374 71'/4 2.6% $ 222.400 228,300 234,300 240,400 246,700 253,200 
Future Salaries3 

+ Recreation & Communications Coordinator 81,032 80% 2.6% $ 154,000 158,100 162,200 166,500 170,900 175,400 

Operations & Maintenance 
I 
s 2os.200 230,600 256,200 281,200 302,400 324,700 

Trial Balance 21-22 177,687 
Growth Rate 2.6% 

Tranfers Out to Special Tax Fund $ (753,500) (789,400) (829,600) (869,600) (906,300) (944,500) 

TOTAL $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Population for Per Capita Estimate 27,032 
Projected Populabon (Proposal) 27,032 30,209 32,451 35,136 37,568 39,375 41,183 

' BSR Is the beneflts•-SBlary rat;o, refJectlng the edditk:mat cost of personnel benefits for that position as a pertentage of .sala,y. 
2 The Administrative Services Director is part of the Fina/lee and RttcreatK>n Departments. RSG a.ssurne.s 50% of tmB spent in Finance and 50% in RacreaUon. 
3 Future Salaries proj6ctions are based on the assuny,Non of new hires as reported to RSG from Mountain Houu, inc/us/Ve of County staff to be transferred 

.,, 
ca· 
C: 

7/1130 7/1/31 7/1/32 7/1/33 ;;; 
c., 
CJ, 

I 

196,300 $ 201,400 $ 206,700 $ 212,100 ::0 
259,900 266,700 273,700 280,900 

180,000 184,700 189,600 194,600 

346,400 368.900 390,400 411,600 a· 
::3 

(982,600) (1,021,700) (1,060,400) (1,099,200) 

$ $ $ 

42,820 44,434 45,812 47,064 

130



FIRE PROTECTION 

MHCSD, as of FY 21-22, contracts with the French Camp McKinley Rural County Fire Protection 
District ("French Camp McKinley"). French Camp McKinley also serves areas that are outside of the 
MHCSD boundary but will be within the Proposed Boundary. Services include fire protection, fire 
prevention, and emergency medical. One fire station in Mountain House currently houses five 
personnel and there are plans for a second station in the northern section of the Proposed Boundary. 
Between MHCSD and the other unincorporated areas, French Camp McKinley responds to 
approximately 1,800 calls per year. The Proposed Boundary also includes 10 parcels serviced by 
Tracy Rural Fire Protection District. Upon incorporation these parcels would detach from Tracy Rural 
and be the responsibility of the City. RSG assumes that the City of Mountain House would continue 
to contract with French Camp McKinley for fire protection, including the future areas to be detached 
from Tracy Rural. 

If the Commission were to approve the LAFCO Alternative Boundary for incorporation, an additional 
5 parcels in Tracy Rural's service area would be included in the City of Mountain House. Figure 36 
provides a summary of the lands serviced by Tracy Rural. 

Figure 36 - Summary of Lands serviced by Tracy Rural

Lands Serviced by Tracy Rural 

Proposed LAFCO Alt. Islands 

10 5 Paree� 

19 10 Acres of Land 

$ 6,214,312 $ 4,327,258 Assessed Valuation 

Source: San Joaquin County 22-23 Tax Roll, Tracy Rural RF/ Response March 

14, 2022 and March 23, 2023 

Projected expenditures for fire protection services to the City as proposed were based on the FY 
2021-22 Audited Financials provided by MHCSD. Specific information regarding staffing numbers, 
vehicles, and other equipment were not provided to RSG. The total expenditures from the General 
Fund for the proposed City's fire services in the transition year of FY 2024-25, will be $834,000. This 
is projected to rise to $1.8 million by FY 2033-34, as demonstrated in Figure 37. As shown, a 
substantial portion of this cost may be paid from Special Tax revenues received by the new City, with 
the balance funded from the General Fund. 

81 

131



@) 
:::0 
(f) 

G 

CX) 
I'\.) 

FIRE PROTECTION 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY 

Item Detail and Assumptions 

Department Expendttures 
Fire Protection Services1 

Trial Balance 21-22 

Growth Rate 

Transfers Out to Special Tax Fund 

TOTAL 

Population for Per Capita Estimate 
Projected Population (Proposal) 

$2,750,044 
2.6%

1 

27,032 

27,032 

Transition 
7/1/24 7/1/25 711/16_ 7/1/27 

12 Month Period Beginning 

7/1/28_ 7/1/29 7/1/30 7/1/31 711/32 7/1/33 

$ 3,231.000 I $3,568.100 s3 .9ss.100 s4,3s1.soo s4.sso.9oo ss.024.soo ss,3s1.soo ss.110.200 ss.042.100 ss.310.soo 

$ (2,402,832) (2,648,580) (2,933,704) (3 ,214,878) (3,456,470) (3,685,350) (3,915,035) (4,136,199) (4,341,254) (4,539,620) 

$ 834,168 $ 920,120 $1,031,996 $1,136.722 $1 ,224,430 $1,339,250 $1,446,765 $1.574,001 $1,700,846 $1,830,880 

30,209 32,451 35,136 37,568 39,375 41,183 42,820 44,434 45,812 47,064 

' Fire Protection Services are provided by the French Camp McKinley Rural County Fire Protection District (Ftench Camp Mckinley) and projected on a percapfta. CPI adjusted basis 

.,.. 
ca· 

w 
....., 
I 

.,.. 

�-
,:, 
a 

a· 

132



LIBRARY SERVICES 

Currently, MHCSD is served by a Library Services Division which operates as a branch of the 
Stockton - San Joaquin County Unified Library System. The Division provides resources to access 
books, media, and the internet. It also enriches resident's lives, encouraging a learning environment 
and offering a venue for gatherings. RSG assumes that the Library Services Division will continue to 
provide these services to the City of Mountain House. 

Projected costs for Library Services are based on the FY 2021-22 Audited Financials provided by 
MHCSD. Forecasted expenditures start at $188,100 in FY 2024-25, increasing to $370,200 by FY 
2033-34, as demonstrated in Figure 38. Because Library services are a permitted use of Special Tax 
Ordinance 96-3, these costs would be funded from the Special Tax fund of the new City. 

83 

133



134



NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

After incorporation, the City should expect to have some uncategorized costs which don't neatly fall 
under any one department. At the writing of this CFA the only non-departmental cost identified would 
be LAFCO fees. These are based on an estimate provided by the San Joaquin County LAFCO. The 
fees help fund LAFCO business and operations, such as this CFA. This CFA projects non
Departmental expenditures to be $11,000 in the transition year, rising to $21,600 by FY 2033-34, as 
demonstrated in Figure 39. 

@RsG 
85 

135



@) 
:;o 
IJ) 

C) 

0) 
a> 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

PROPOSED BOUNDARY 

Item Delllll and Assuml!tlons 

Department Expenditures 

LAFCO Fees 

San Joaquin LAFCO Estimate 

Grov.1h Rate 

TOTAL 

Population for Per Capita Estimate 

Projected Population (ProposaQ 

Transition 

7/1/24 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 

9,3191 
$ 11,000 12,100 13,400 14,700 

2.6% 

Is 11,000 j $ 12,100 $ 13,400 $ 14,700 

27,032 
27,032 30,209 32,451 35,136 37,568 

.,, 

12 Month Period Beginning ca· 

(ti 
7/1/28 7/1/29 7/1/30 7/1/31 7/1/32 7/1/33 

w 
10 

I 

<:: 
15,900 17,000 18,200 19,300 20,500 21,600 

Q) 

$ 15,900 $ 17,000 $ 18,200 $ 19,300 $ 20,500 $ 21,600 � 
3 

39,375 41,183 42,820 44,434 45,812 47,064 

136



CONTINGENCY AND RESERVE FUND 

RSG utilized a 10 percent contingency factor of estimated expenditures in these projections in case 
of unforeseeable expenses. The contingency is not a fund but is for unknown discretionary 
expenditures. The OPR Guidelines advise a contingency factor of 10-20 percent of costs, in addition 
to a reserve fund of at least 10 percent. Reserves protect a city against unforeseen events, be they 
legislative (such as the shifting of property taxes to school districts), economic, major disasters, 
emergencies, liability claims, litigation settlements, or pandemics. The COVID-19 Pandemic and 
related inflationary pressures also present difficulties for any city. Local jurisdictions are often 
unprepared for normal fluctuations in the economy, let alone another pandemic or related recession. 

RSG analyzed and collected information on reserves in cities throughout California, with an emphasis 
on small cities and relatively young cities. The City of Mountain House's local tax base is much less 
diversified than most surveyed. RSG researched Eastvale and Wildomar, both recently incorporated 
cities, as well as Lathrop, chosen due to its similar population size and geographic proximity to the 
Proposed Boundary. Menifee, Yucca Valley, Oakley, and Yucaipa were compared due to being cities 
with relatively similar population sizes, population growth rates, and annual operating budgets as 
those of the City. The use of reserve funds varied widely across the cities and the average reserve 
amongst these cities is 56 percent. 

Figure 40 presents a summary of these General Fund reserves based on recent research of cities' 
2021-22 and 2022-23 budgets. Mountain House reserve figures of $2.5 million represent the 
projected total sum of the 10 percent contingency for the first year after the transition year or FY 2025-
26. Reserves currently held by the MHCSD are also expected to transfer to the City but are not shown
in this table44

• 

Figure 40 - General Fund Reserves 

Peu Citie:a -Adopt.td fteHrvH 

Flsc•I YHr RevM:wed 

Total Oper1mg Expenditure a 1 

Total ReHrvu23·• 
Percentage of Operating Revenue 

Average Percentage of Operating Revenue 

I Mountain House l 
I 2025-26 

IS 14,117,479 I $ 

I $ 2.◄56.ooo i s 

! 17•�! 

56% 

EHtv•I• 

2021-22 

29,655,494 s

14,133,584 s

41•4 

I c.ro,,..,..AllopadllfllllPrfj«fMIAl:MJ2021•'1V ..... ,ltirWH:C.,-�ncad"15:ped.lT•FlltdftJ......, .. 

1 CiO" ...... �WPrfl/«IHktltJ2011-11V_,..,NnlliCClfflpr.,,.,__RnMd.lR,._,.,FYZ<nt•21 

SUBSIDIARY DISTRICT 

1'1Aldomu MtinifH 

2021-22 2021-22 

15,620,100 s 7◄.835, 100 

9,351,126 s 51,177 ,0115 
60% 61% 

Lathrop Yucca Val .. y OakJey Yucaipa 
i 2021-22 2021-22 I 2021-22 2021-22 

s 26,772,971 s 14,547,527 s 27,953,559 s 29.&23,916 

s 1,110,405 s 13,084,805 s 17,-442,899 s 10,781,774 
30% 90% 62•t. 35•4 

As part of the incorporation application, MHCSD will remain a Subsidiary District to the City of 
Mountain House, with its sole responsibility being the enforcement of CC&Rs. Property taxes will fund 
the Subsidiary District and it may not be subsidized by the new City's General Fund. The CFA 
assumes that the two existing Code Enforcement Officers, who currently enforce CC&Rs, will 
continue to perform that work via the Subsidiary District. RSG determined costs by using the 2021-
22 salary and benefits schedules provided by MHCSD and the 2021-22 Audited Financials. The City 
would be responsible for the enforcement of the General Plan and Zoning Code. The budget also 
includes the Subsidiary District's share of annual audit costs. 

As described on page 41, the property tax exchange between MHCSD and the new City would differ 
from the formula under Government Code 56810(c) because the application of the formula would 
result in insufficient revenues available for the Subsidiary District's operations and a city is statutorily 

44 MHCSD as of June 30, 2022, possesses $26.3 million in unassigned fund balance (ACFR FY 2021,-22) 

@RsG 
87 

137



prohibited from transferring funds for this purpose. As a result, the property tax exchange anticipated 
to be approved by the Commission in its terms and conditions would ensure that a sufficient amount 
of property taxes remain with the Subsidiary District. 

Figure 41 demonstrates that 1.011 percent of property taxes will pay for the operations of the 
Subsidiary District. The Subsidiary District cost and revenue forecast can be found in Appendix 6. 

Figure 41- Calculation of the Subsidiary District Taxing Entity Share 

Net Costs for Subsidiary District 

Net Cost of Services Remaining in District Costs 

Cost of CC&R Enforcement $ 403,400 

Audit 5,000 

Total $ 408,400 

Base Year Property Tax Revenue Withheld for District (2021-22) 

Property Tax Revenue Adjustment for AV Growth 

Total Assessed Valuation (2021-22) 

Projected Assessed Valuation (2025-26) 

Change in AV from 2021-22 to 2025-26 

Property Tax Revenue Adjusted for AV Growth 

Property Tax Share Computation 

Projected Assessed Valuation (2025-26) 

General Tax Levy (1 % of Assessed Value) 

Property Tax Revenue Adjusted for AV Growth 

Property Tax Share to Subsidiary District 

IMPACTS ON EXISTING AGENCIES 

COUNTY TRANSITION YEAR REPAYMENTS 

Revenues 

$ 

$ $ 

403,400 

5,000 

408,400 

408,400 

4,040,811,212 

5,087,400,000 

25.90% 

514,177 

5,087,400,000 

50,874,000 

514,177 

1.011 % 

During the transition year, if the City requests, the County would continue to be responsible for 
maintaining its current level of service for the City of Mountain House. Costs to provide services which 
will eventually transfer to the new City would be reimbursed by the City. The City has up to five years 
to reimburse the County for the net cost, unless waived by the County. The twelve-month transition 
period gives the City the opportunity to hire additional staff, initiate contracts for other services, and 
generally prepare for full assumption of municipal services in the following f iscal year. However, 
because the MHCSD provides a majority of municipal services delivered to Mountain House 
residents, it is not anticipated that such an arrangement is needed. The City of Mountain House would 
be expected to provide all previously outlined services in the transition year or FY 2024-25. This CFA 
assumes therefore that the County would not be owed any transition year reimbursement payments 
for continued services. 

@RSG
88 

138



---- -------�

To mitigate the potential adverse fiscal impacts on the City during the transition period if assumptions 
in this CFA about the timely transfer of funds do not occur, LAFCO's Terms and Conditions could 
provide a mechanism to address the potential issue. For example, in the event that property tax 
revenues assumed in this CFA cannot be shifted from the MHCSD and from the County to the new 
City in FY 2024-25, LAFCO Terms and Conditions could specify that these revenues shall be applied 
towards reimbursement of County transition year services; any additional funds received by the 
County during the transition year, in excess of reimbursements, that otherwise would have accrued 
to the City should be remitted by the County to the City. 

REVENUE NEUTRALITY MITIGATION PAYMENTS 

In 1992, Senate Bill 1559 was implemented to reduce the negative fiscal impact incorporations can 
have on counties and other affected agencies. Pursuant to SB 1559, as codified in Government Code 
Section 56815, LAFCO cannot approve a proposal for incorporation unless it finds that the amount 
of revenues the new city received from the county and affected agencies after incorporation would 
be substantially equal to the amount of savings the county or the affected agencies would attain from 
no longer providing services to the proposed incorporation area. Incorporations should not occur 
primarily for financial reasons and, under the CKH Act, should result in a similar exchange of both 
revenue and responsibility for service delivery among affected agencies. Negative financial impacts 
to agencies must be identified and mitigation measures proposed. 

As it stands, there are two affected agencies that are eligible to receive revenue neutrality payments, 
that being the County and Tracy Rural. No payment is projected in this CFA to go to the County. This 
is because the CFA estimates that incorporation will result in a net positive effect on the County. 
However, incorporation as projected in this CFA will have a minor net negative effect on Tracy Rural. 
As projected, Tracy Rural will experience a net loss in revenues of approximately $5,200. The 
calculations used in this CFA are displayed for Tracy Rural in Figure 42. 

Offsetting Capital Improvement Assistance from MHCSD to Tracy Rural 

It should be noted that the amount, duration, and terms of any revenue neutrality payments are all 
subject to negotiation between the affected agencies and the incorporation representatives. 
According to the LAFCO Executive Officer, Tracy Rural has benefitted from recent capital 
improvement assistance from MHCSD and it is probable that the Proponents may offset any claim 
for revenue neutrality payments to Tracy Rural by the contributions previously made by the MHCSD 
such that there may be no revenue neutrality payments to Tracy Rural. 

RSG will update this CFA, should the parties reach agreement on a revenue neutrality program. 

89 

139



Figure 42 - Tracy Rural Revenue Neutrality Payment 

PROPOSED BOUNDARY 

Potential Revenue Neutrality Payments based on Proposal Boundary 

Revenue Transferred 
Property Taxes 

Total Revenue Loss to Tracy Rural FPO 

Expenses Transferred (Net of Revenue Offsets) 
Cost of Calls for Service 

Total Expenditure Reduction 

County Property Tax Admin. Fee of 0.73% 

Net Revenue Impact to Tracy Rural - Positive/(Negative) 

Potential Revenue Neutrality Payment 

7 861 

2,500 

$ 

$ 

$ 

(7,861) 

2,500 

100 

(5,261) 

5,261 

90 

140



PROVISIONAL APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT 

Figure 43 presents the provisional appropriations limit for the new City. The appropriations limit is the 
amount of money that a governmental agency can spend in one fiscal year. Also referred to as "The 
Gann Limit," voters approved this initiative in 1979, setting the appropriations limits on governmental 
agencies. RSG calculated $31,665,091 as the provisional appropriation limit based on Government 
Code Section 56812 and the City's projected first fiscal year of full tax proceeds in 2025-26. 

Figure 43 - Appropriations Limit

PROPOSED BOUNDARY 

2025-26 Estimates 

Proceeds of Taxes to City 

Property Taxes 

Special Taxes 

Sales Taxes (including in-lieu fees) 

Property Transfer Taxes 

Off Highway Vehicle License 

Gas Taxes (2103) 

Gas Taxes (2105) 

Gas Taxes (2106) 

Gas Taxes (2107) 

Gas Taxes (2107.5) 

Subtotal 

Interest Earnings 

Total 

Cost of Living Factor
1 

Population Growth
2 

2025-26 Provisional Limit 

' Consuner Price Index December 2013 to December 2022 
2 RSG Projected Population Growth 2022-2033 

$ 9,528,100 

18,073,589 

174,200 

611,400 

700 

201,800 

149,200 

85,700 

203,100 

6,000 

29,033,789 

25,300 

29,059,089 

2.63% 

6.18% 

$31,665,091 

91 

141



CONCLUSIONS 

Appendices 1 through 7 present summary projections for the City's General & Special Tax Funds by 
scenario. Additionally, the Road Fund, Lighting & Landscape Maintenance District Funds, and an 
Affordable Housing Fund forecasts are shown for the Proposed Boundary. As stated earlier, the 
following conclusions assume no revenue neutrality payments, which may be altered should the 
parties reach agreement on a different payment structure. Should that occur, RSG will update the 
CFA accordingly. 

MHCSD Proposed Boundary 

After assessing the MHCSD's application to LAFCO, RSG made the following conclusions: 

• Projected General Fund Revenue Surplus (before Potential Revenue Neutrality Payments):
Based on the assumptions and analysis described herein, the City's potential General Fund,
accounting for Special Tax fund revenues used for municipal services, will produce a
surplus in each year of the analysis. This surplus is maintained even after accounting for
potential revenue neutrality payments and deposits in the reserve fund.

See Appendix 1 for a forecast of the General Fund for the City of Mountain House under the
Proposed Boundary and Appendix 9 for a forecast of the Special Tax funds.

• Retention of CC&R Enforcement in the MHCSD as a Subsidiary District of the City: The
application for incorporation proposes to divest MHCSD of all of its statutorily authorized
powers except the power to enforce Covenants, Conditions & Restrictions ("CC&Rs") within
its boundaries and establishing MHCSD as a subsidiary district of the City. A small transfer of
property taxes will fund the Subsidiary District to cover its costs of operations.

• Revenue Neutrality Payment Estimates: Section 56815 of the CKH Act establishes the ability
for agencies detrimentally affected by incorporation to negotiate for payments when revenues
lost to a new city are not offset by a substantially equal amount of decreased expenditures.
These payments, known as revenue neutrality payments, are negotiated between the
proponents and the affected agencies based on information in the CFA. This CFA concludes
that the County will not suffer from a loss of net revenues due to incorporation, but that Tracy
Rural will. The loss to Tracy Rural is minor however and is projected to have no effect on the
feasibility of the City. If a revenue neutrality agreement is approved by the parties or
established by LAFCO following the issuance of this CFA, the Report and its findings shall be
updated.

Alternative Scenarios 

RSG determined that the three alternatives to the proponents' incorporation scenario are feasible. By 
the end of the 10-year forecast all scenarios showed a positive fund balance. It is important to note 
that RSG's development projections in the low growth scenarios were far more conservative than 
MHCSD's projections. Growth that is greater than RSG's projections will improve the feasibility of 
each scenario. 

Alternative 1: Lower Growth for the Proposed Boundary 

The net revenue for the City in this scenario is $2.5 million in the transition year or FY 2024-
25. This shrinks in the following year down to $1.5 million in FY 2025-26. The next 8 years
see net revenues reaching as large as $1.5 million in FY 2028-29. The City ends the 10-year
forecast of this scenario with a $13.4 million fund balance.

92 

142



Alternative 2: LAFCO Alternative Boundary, Normal Growth 

The net revenue for the City in this scenario is $1.8 million in the transition year or FY 2024-
25. This shrinks in the following year down to $697,000 in FY 2025-26. The next 8 years see
net revenues fluctuating reaching as low as $416,000 in FY 2027-28 to as large as $1.1 million
in FY 2029-30. The City ends the 10-year forecast of this scenario with a $7.7 million fund
balance.

Alternative 3: Lower Growth LAFCO Alternative Boundary 

The net revenue for the City in this scenario is $2.5 million in the transition year or FY 2024-
25. This shrinks in the following year down to $1.5 million in FY 2025-26. The next 8 years
see net revenues fluctuating, reaching as large as $1.5 million in FY 2031-32. The City ends
the 10-year forecast of this scenario with a $13.5 million fund balance.

@RsG 
93 

143



@) 
:::0 
(/) 

<D 
-"" 

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY 

General Fund --··-·-·. -··-

Beginning Fund Balance 

Revenues by Source 
Property Taxes 1 

Sales Taxes (including In-Lieu) 
Property Transfer Taxes 
Off Highway License Subvention 
Fines & Forfeitures 
Franchise Fees 
Licenses & Permits 
Community Development Fees 
Law Enforcement Fees 
Other Revenues 
Investment Earnings 
Total General Fund Revenue 

Expenditures by Department 
City Council 
Ctty Clerk 
Administration 
City Attorney 
Finance 
Community Development 
Public Works 
Animal Control 
Law Enforcement 
Recreation 
Fire Protection 
Library 
Non-Departmental 

Contingen� !10% of Deet. E15eenditures)3 

Total General Fund Expenditures 

Net Revenue I (Deficit) BEFORE Rev Neutrallty 

Tracy Rural Revenue Neutrality Payment 

Countr Revenue NeutraHtt Pa�ment4 

Total General Fund Expenditures 

Net Revenue I (Deficit) AFTER Rev Neutrafity 

Fund Balance 
+ Reserves from MHCSD

0 

Fund Balance wl MHCSD Reserves 

Transition 
711124 ··-. 

$ 

9,109,700 
85,500 

563,100 
700 

147,400 
1,383,600 

8,400 
2,622,747 

32,900 
13,700 

13,967,747 

106,500 
898,700 
453,303 
294,900 
665,874 

4,513,737 
-

-
3,308,368 

-
834,168 

11,000 

1 109,000 
12,195,550 

1,772,197 

-

-

12,195,550 

1,772,197 

1,772,197 
25,955,383 

27,727,580 

711125 . , ,._.,. 711126 .. ., __ 

1,772,197 2,450,608 

9,528,100 10,119,200 
174,200 215,600 
611,400 708,000 

700 800 
162,500 180,600 

1,525,400 1,695,000 
9,200 10,200 

3,412,951 4,088,783 
36,300 40,300 
15,100 16,800 
25,300 35 000 

15,501,151 17,110,283 

117,500 130,600 
967,800 1,049,200 
486,081 524,475 
270,000 300.000 
699,435 737,640 

6,178,524 6,913,891 
- -

-

3,818,920 4,448,596 

920.120 1,031,996 
-

12,100 13,400 

1 347,000 1 515,000 
14 ,817,479 16,664,798 

683,672 445,485 

5,261 5,261 
-

14,822,740 16,670,059 

678,411 440,224 

2,450,608 2,890,832 

28,405,991 28,846,215 

Annual City General Fund Operating Budget 

711127 .. ··-· 711128 .. ··-- 711/29 7/1/30 7/1/31 

2,890,832 3,275,556 4,247.085 5,320,726 6,242,839 

10,887,500 11,734,000 12,588,400 13,370,100 14,120,900 
233,600 239,700 499,800 597,600 893,200 
852,800 954,000 991,800 1,030,900 1,083,600 

900 1,000 1,000 1,100 1,200 
198,100 213,100 228,800 244,100 260,000 

1,860,000 2,000,700 2,147,700 2,291,800 2,440,700 
11,200 12,100 13,000 13,900 14,800 

3,701,153 2,751.453 2,753.403 2,492,103 2,457,003 
44,200 47,600 51,100 54,500 58,000 
18,500 19,900 21,300 22,700 24,200 
41,200 46,700 60,600 75,900 89,100 

17,849,153 18,020,253 19,356,903 20,194,703 21.442,703 

143,200 154,100 165,400 176,500 187,900 
1,128,600 1,198,000 1,270,200 1,341,300 1,414,900 

562,059 594,999 629,289 663,174 698,139 
329,200 354,100 380,100 405,600 432,000 
775,332 809,784 845,370 881,010 917,622 

6,676,433 5,405,921 5,517,544 5,386,515 5,468,034 
- - - -

- - - - -

5,105,922 5,737,230 6,451,850 7,196,265 8,018,801 
- - -

1,136,722 1,224,430 1,339,250 1,446,765 1,574,001 
- - - -

14,700 15,900 17,000 18,200 19,300 

1,587,000 1,549,000 1,662,000 1,752,000 1,873,000 
17,459,168 17,043,463 18,278.002 19,267,329 20,603,696 

389,986 976,790 1,078,902 927,374 839,007 

5,261 5,261 5,261 5,261 5,261 
- - -

17,464,429 17,048,724 18,283,263 19,272,590 20,608,958 

384,725 971,529 1,073,640 922,113 833,745 

3,275,556 4,247,085 5,320,726 6,242,839 7,076,584 

29,230,939 30,202,468 31,276,109 32,198,222 33,031,967 

1 
Taxes levied from property assessments are projected in the transition year based on the incorporation applcation's proposal for reorganization of the CSD. 

2 Special Taxes include 4 ordinances for Roads, Pubic Safety, Parl<s & Recreation, and Pubic IM>rl<s. 

7/1/32 ,,,,..,6. 

7,076,584 

14,857,100 
1,010,000 
1,132,700 

1,300 
275,100 

2,582,500 
15,600 

2,097,474 
61,400 
25,600 

100,900 
22,159,674 

198,900 
1,485,600 

731,862 
457,100 
953,694 

5,249,780 
-

-

8,869,846 
-

1,700,846 
-

20,500 

1,967 000 
21,635,127 

524,547 

5,261 
-

21,640,388 

519,286 

7,595,870 

33,551,253 

3 Contigency at 10" is consistent with the Govemol's Off,ce of Planning and Research Guidelines for Incorporation. 

• Because the costs transferred from the County of San Joaquin outweigh the tax revenues, the City as projected Is not expected to pay any Revenue Neutrality payments. 
5 

MHCSD Reserves defined as unassigned General Fund Balance on June 30, 2022 less reserves set aside for Subsidiary District 

7/1133 .......... 

7,595,870 

15,542,700 
1,036,500 
1,182,800 

1,300 
290,100 

2,722,900 
16,500 

1,906,409 
64,700 
27,000 

108 400 
22,899,309 

209,700 
1,555,900 

765,423 
481,900 
989,820 

5,188,000 
-

9,768,180 
-

1,830,880 
-

21.600 

2,oa1,ooo 
22,892.403 

6,906 

5,261 
-

22,897,664 

1,645 

7,597,515 

33,552,898 

)> 
"'O 
"'O 
m 

z 

C 

....i,. 

"Tl 
C 
z 

C 

C/) 
C 

s: 
s: 
)> 
:::0 
-< 

I 

"'O 
:::0 
0 
"'C 
0 
C/) 
m 

C 

OJ 
0 
C 
z 

C 
)> 
:::0 
-< 

144



APPENDIX 2 - ROAD FUND 

ROAD FUND REVENUE DETAILS 

Like most cities, the primary recurring source of Road Fund revenue is gas tax apportionments from 
the State. Generally, Road Fund revenues are restricted by law to road-related expenditures, 
including routine maintenance and road repair. Under existing State law, a surplus in the Road Fund 
cannot be used for the provision of any general municipal services or expended for maintenance of 
private roads. It is also common, as is the case in our projected budget for the City, that Road Fund 
revenues are insufficient to cover ongoing maintenance costs for roadways. To make up the gap, this 
CFA projects allocations of County Measure K funding and Special Taxes. The City will receive a 
share of gasoline taxes generated from the state under Sections 2103, 2105, 2106, 2107 and 2107.5 
of the California Streets and Highways Code. Gas Tax funds are restricted for use in the construction, 
improvement, and maintenance of public streets. Measure K funds are also restricted to local streets 
and road repair. In FY 2024-25, RSG estimates that the City Road Fund could receive approximately 
$601,700 in gas taxes and $618,415 in Measure K funds. 

@RsG 
95 

145



@) ROAD FUND SUMMARY 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY , , Annual City Road Fund Operating Budget 

, Transition ! 

::0 
Road Fund ( 7/1/24 ! 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 7/1/28 7/1/29 7/1/30 7/1/31 7/1/32 7/1/33 

(f) Beginning Fund Balance j $ • i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Q

<D 
O') 

Revenues by Source 
Gas Tax (Sec. 2103) i 187,900 201,800 218,500 233.600 244,900 256,100 266,300 276.400 284,900 292,700 

Gas Tax (Sec. 2105) ' 138,900 149,200 161,500 172.700 181,000 189 ,300 196,800 204,200 210,600 216,300 

Gas Tax(Sec. 2106) 79,800 85,700 92,800 99,200 104,000 108,800 113,100 117,300 121,000 124,300 

Gas Tax(Sec. 2107) 189,100 203,100 219,900 235,100 246.400 257,700 267,990 278,100 286,700 294,500 

Gas Tax (Sec. 2107.5) 6,000 ! 6.000 6,000 6.000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 

Measure K - City Allocation 1 618,415 ' 679,455 751,967 
Interest Eamings 
Total 1,220,115 1,325,255 1,450,667 746,600 782,300 817,900 850,190 882,000 909.200 933,800 

Expendijures by Department 
Road Maintenance 1,220,115 11325,255 1,450,667 746,600 782,300 817 900 850 1 90 882,000 909 ,200 933 800 

Total ! 1.220, 115 • 1,325,255 1,450,667 746,600 782,300 817,900 850,190 882,000 909,200 933,800 

Net Revenue / (Deficij) I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Ending Road Fund Balance i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1 
Due to incorporating after 2007. the City is allowed to receive only 3 years of formula funding from the County's Measure K ha/f-{;ent sates tax measure's Local Street Repair Fund. 

146



@) 
::D 
fJ) 

C) 

c.o 
-.J 

LANDSCAPE & LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICTS 1-3 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY 

LLMDFUNDS 

Beginning Fund Balance 

Revenues by Source 
District 1 Assessment 
District 2 Assessment 
District 3 Assessment 
Interest Earnings 
Total 

Expenditures by Department 
LLMD Expend�ures 
Total 

Net Revenue/ (Oeftcit) 

Ending LLMD Fund Balance 

j Transition 
i 7/1/24 

$ 

53,849 

38,341 

335,651 

427,841 

427,841 
427,841 

7/1/25 7/1126 

0 0 

53,849 53,849 

38,341 38,341 

335,651 335,651 

427,841 427,841 

427,841 427,841 
427,841 427,841 

0 0 

0 0 

Annual Landscape & Lighting Maintenanc e Fund(s) Operating Budget 

7/1/27 711/28 711/29 7/1/30 711131 

0 0 0 0 0 

53,849 53,849 53,849 53,849 53,849 

38,341 38,341 38,341 38,341 38,341 
335.651 335,651 335,651 335,651 335,651 

427,841 427.841 427,841 427.841 427,841 

427 841 427 841 427,841 427,841 427 841 

427,841 427.841 427,841 427,841 427,841 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

711132 7/1/33 

0 0 

53,849 53,849 

38,341 38,341 
335,651 335.651 

427,841 427,841 

427,841 427,841 
427,841 427,841 

0 0 

0 0 

)> 
.,, 
'"C 
m 

z 
C 

>< 

w 

' 

C) 
:I: 

::! 
z 
C) 

� 

r
)> 
z 
C 
CJ) 
0 
)> 
'1J 
m 

3: 
)> 

z 
--i 
m 

z 
)> 
z 
(") 
m 

C 

CJ) 
--i 
Al 

0 
--i 
CJ) 

147



APPENDIX 4 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND REVENUE DETAILS 

The County of San Joaquin currently operates an affordable housing fund for the Proposed Boundary 
area. Upon incorporation this fund and all related statutory affordable housing requirements will 
become the responsibility of the City of Mountain House. The fund has accumulated approximately 
$7.8 million in cash since it was created about 20 years ago. This fund balance has not declined over 
the years due to a lack of expenditures for affordable housing projects. The City may choose to take 
advantage of the stored funds, but these funds may only be spent on affordable housing projects. 
Due to historical trends in this area and the widely variable nature of the costs of affordable housing 
projects, this CFA does not project any expenditures from the fund. It must be noted that this is not a 
realistic assumption, as it is unlikely the City would not approve or expend any funds on affordable 
housing. In light of this, revenues for affordable housing are projected in this CFA. Based on a per
permitted unit ratio, the affordable housing fund for Mountain House is projected to gain $1.3 million 
in the transition year, bringing the fund balance to $9.2 million at the end of FY 2024-25. This balance 
rises to $22.6 million in FY 2033-34. 

98 

148



@) AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND 
PROPOSED BOUNDARY , , Annual Affordable Housing Fund Budget 

! Transition l 

:::0 
Affordable Housing Fund j 7/1/24 j 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 7/1/28 7/1/29 7/1/30 7/1/31 7/1/32 7/1/33 

� 
Beginning Fund Balance I $7,848,670 l 9,174,005 10,891,236 12,947,803 14,831,434 16,268,865 17,717,492 19,049,988 20,375,000 21,535,458 

CD 
CD 

Revenues by Source 
Affordable Housing Impact Fees1 

I 
1,269,355

1
1,651,797 1,978,885 1,791,281 1,331,646 1,332,590 1,206,126 1,189,138 1,015,134 922,662 

Interest Earnings 55 981 65 434 77 682 92
1
350 105 785 116 038 126 370 135 874 145 325 153,602 

Total Revenues , 1,325,335 1,717,230 2,056,567 1,883,631 1,437,431 1,448,627 1,332,496 1,325,012 1,160,458 1,076,264 

i l 
Expenditures by Department 

Affordable Housing Expenditures 
Total Expenditures 

Net Revenue/ (Deficit) 1,325,335 1,717,230 2,056,567 1,883,631 1,437,431 1,448,627 1,332,496 1,325,012 1,160,458 1,076,264 

Ending Affordable Housing Fund Balance 9,174,005 10,891,236 12,947,803 14,831,434 16,268,865 17,717,492 19,049,968 20,375,000 21,535,456 22,611,722 

1 
Affordable Housing Impact Fees projected based on proportion of Base Year fees to Base Year revenues, multiplied by the annual amount of residential units constructed. 

149



@) 
;:o 
(f) 

C) 

..... 
0 
0 

CC&R FUND/SUBSIDIARY DISTRICT 

PROPOSED BOUNDARY Annual CC&R Fund/Subsidiary District Operating Budget 

I Transition ! 
SUBSIDIARY DISTRICT ! 7/1/24 ! 7/1/25 7/1/26 7/1/27 7/1/28 7/1/29 7/1/30 7/1/31 

Beginning Fund Balance $ 88,200 182,529 296,731 440,347 617,788 829,395 1,071,210 

Revenues by Source 

Property Tax Assessment Share 
1 

491,600 514,200 546,100 587,500 633,200 679,300 721,500 762,000 

Interest Eamings 629 1,302 2 116 3 141 4.406 5,916 7,640 

Total Revenues 491,600 514,829 547.402 589,616 636,341 683,706 727.416 769,640 

Expenditures by Department 

CC&R Enforcement
2 403,400 415,500 428,200 441,000 453,900 467,100 480,600 494,300 

Audit 5 000 5 000 5 000 5 000 5 000 5 000 5,000 

Total Expenditures 403.400 420,500 433,200 446,000 458,900 472,100 485,600 499,300 

Net Revenue / (Deficit) 88,200 94,329 114,202 143,616 177,441 211,606 241,816 270,340 

Ending Subsidiary District Fund Balance 88,200 182,529 296,731 440,347 617,788 829,395 1,071.210 1,341,551 

+Reserves held for MHCSD
3 316,669 

Fund Balance w/ Reserves 404,869 499,198 613,400 757,016 934.457 1,146,064 1,387,879 1,658.220 

1 
The Property Tax Share (1.011%) allocated to the Subsidiary District is derived from the expected costs of CC&R enforcement. 

2 CC&R enforcement costs are the sum of Mountain House CSD's current code enforcement costs. 
3 

Reserves to be held are calculated at a ratio of 78.5% of expenditums based on proponent's fea$ibi/ily study by Berl<son Associates 

l> 
"'ti 

7/1/32 7/1 /33 
m 

z 1,341,551 1,639,519 
C 

>< 
801,800 838,700 

0, 9,569 11,694 

811,369 850,394 

en 

508,400 522.700 
CD 

5 000 5 000 
CJ)

513,400 527,700 

C 
297,969 322,694 

)> 
1,639,519 1,962,213 :::0 

--< 
1,956,188 2,278,882 

C 

CJ) 
-t 
:xl 

150



151



152



153



154



APPENDIX 10 - SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY AUDITOR RESPONSE TO RFI 

RESPONSE INCLUDED AS ATTACHMENT TO THIS CFA 

105 

155



156



San Joaquin County Auditor-Controller's Office 
Response to 2-28-23 RSG Mountain House request 
Page2 

Property Taxes- Our office apportioned property tax revenues for 2021-22 for the areas requested as 

follows (including property tax administrative fees charged): 

Sum of Amount Entity . 

Account# • Desulptlon • County General Fr Camp Fire Tr;acy Rural Fire MHCSD Study 1 MHCSD Study 2 

· 4100100010 PROPERTY TAX-SECURED 170,318,600.91 767,896.09 7,418,676.46 6,196,462.94 6,231,163.13 

· 4100200070 PROPERTY TAX-SECURED·S0813 8,645,850.28 40,720.48 377,264.62 318,660.97 320,445.47 

- 4101000000 PROPERTY TAX-UNSECURED 8,012,406.79 37,675.82 368,697.72 312,237.21 313,985.74 

- 4101000007 PROPERTY TAX-UNSECURED-SB813 141,508.33 679.40 6,056.64 5,100.30 5,128.86 

-; 4101000010 PROPERTY TAX-UNSECURED-BOAT 256,188.23 

- 4101000020 PROPERTY TAX-SB 813-PRIOR 34,169.04 161.58 1,440.10 1,208.40 1,215.17 

- 4101000030 PROPERTY TAX-UNSECURED-PRIOR 214,276.20 951.94 7,933.61 6,089.56 6,123.66 

- 4101000101 PROP TAX-RESID DISTR-MTCA SA 1,872,619.91 

- 4101000102 PROP TAX-RESID DISTR-RIPN SA 817,614.98 

- 4101000103 PROP TAX-RESID DISTR-STKN SA 3,218,418.79 

- 4101000104 PROP T AX·RESI D DISTR· TRCY SA 1,128,897.91 

- 4101000203 PROPERTY TAX•LMIHF-STOCKTON SA 278,566.49 

- 4316000000 PENALTIES ON DEL TAXES-COST 194,885.00 

- 4316000001 PENALTIES ON DEL TAXES-INT 756,596.70 

- 4316001000 PENAL TIES·DELINQ·SB813 65,348.36 

- 4S05500000 ST-HOMEOWNER PROP TAX 1,182,599.86 5,380.80 52,670.76 44,605.50 44,855.29 

- 4576000000 OTHER GOVT-REDEVLMNT PASS·THR 6,361,274.42 

- 4605010000 DIRECT ASSESSMENTS-WEED ABATE 64,289.78 

· 4605100000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS-PRIOR 236,932.49 533.72 5,263.73 

- 4605110000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS-CURRENT 2,977,353.90 298,812.20 1,578,306.72 

Grand Tobi 206,778,398.36 1,lSZ,812.03 9,816,310.36 6,884,364.88 6,922,917.32 

County General Fr Camp Fire Tracy Rural Fire MHCSD Study 1 MHCSD Study 2 

Admin Fee% 

Admin Fee$ 

0% 0.0862% 0.8984% 0.7275% 0.7275% 

(17,&46,827 Total Admin Fee) 15,205.00 158,547.00 128,380.00 128,380.00 

Countywide 2021-22 "Auditor's Ratio" for the San Joaquin County General Fund - Per the attached 

Auditor's Ratio Report, the ratio calculated pursuant to Government Code Section 56810(c)(l) for the 

fiscal year 2021-22 was 55.9%. 

Please let our office know if you have any questions or need further detail or clarification. 

Si•�--

Jeffery M. Woltkamp, CPA 

Auditor-Controller 

CC: Jerome Wilverding, San Joaquin County Administrator 

Attachments 

157



158



159



Follow-up Report to the 

2020-2021 San Joaquin County Grand Jury 

Independent Special Districts: 

Transparency "Not Found" 

Case #0220 

Preface 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

This report contains the responses to the 2021-2022 San Joaquin County Grand Jury follow-up 

report regarding Independent Special Districts (ISD), the Local Agency Formation Commission 

(LAFCO), the County of San Joaquin and its Auditor-Controller's Office and Information Systems 

Division. This report focuses on the 2021-2022 Grand Jury findings and recommendations and 

the responses, which are presented verbatim in this report. 

The 2022-2023 Grand Jury follow-up determinations are presented after the agency's response 

to each recommendation. 

Discussions, findings, and recommendations from the 2022-2023 Grand Jury are 

in text boxes framed in black. 

Complete copies of the original report and the agency's responses may be found on the San 

Joaquin County Grand Jury website at https://www.sjcourts.org/grandjury/. 

Summary 

The 2020-2021 Grand Jury investigated San Joaquin County's 102 Independent Special Districts 

and related County agencies in response to the lack of public access to dependable, complete, 

and transparent information on these districts. Beginning in January 2020, SB 929 required all 

ISDs in California to have websites containing specific information, including agendas, financial 

statements, and links to the State Controller's Office. Districts are able to claim an exemption if 

160



161



162



163



164



165



Response Requirements 

California Penal Code Sections 933 and 933.05 require that specific responses to all findings and 

recommendations contained in this report be submitted to the Presiding Judge of the San 

Joaquin County Superior Court within 90 days of receipt of the report unless otherwise noted. 

The San Joaquin County Local Agency Formation Commission is required to respond to: 

Findings Fl.1, Fl.2, and Recommendations Rl.1, Rl.2, and Rl.3. 

The San Joaquin County Board of Supervisors is required to respond to: 

Findings F2.1 and Recommendation R2.1. 

Mail or hand deliver a hard copy of the response to: 

Honorable Michael D. Coughlan, Presiding Judge 

San Joaquin County Superior Court 

180 E. Weber Ave., Suite 1306J 

Stockton, California 95202 

Also, please email a copy of the response to Mr. Irving Jimenez, Judicial Secretary to the Grand 

Jury, at grandjury@sjcourts.org. 

166



167


	Agenda July Meeting
	Agenda Item No. 1 Summary of Mintues
	Agenda Item No. 2- Out-of Agency- Service Requests
	Agenda Item No. 3- Proposed Resvisions to Policies Amendments 
	Agenda Item No. 4- Executive Brief 



